THE WHITE HOUSE PUBLIC LIBRARY BY-LAWS

REVISED by library board on January 9, 2025

I. FUNCTION

The Library Board has the power to direct all the affairs of the public library. It shall provide the state library agencies such statistics and information as may be required from time to time (Municipal Code Title 2; chapter 2; Library Board sec. 2-203).

II. BOARD MEMBERS

The board shall consist of seven (7) persons serving without pay who shall be appointed by the Mayor and Board of Alderman. The board shall be composed of the Mayor or his/her designee and six (6) citizens, four (4) of whom shall be residents of the city. The terms of office for the six (6) citizens shall be on staggered terms, with the first board being composed of two (2) citizens appointed for a one (1) year term, two (2) citizens appointed for two (2) year terms, and two (2) citizens appointed for three (3) year terms and their successors appointed for three (3) year terms. Board members may not serve more than two consecutive terms and must have a three-year break before being reappointed. Vacancies in such board occurring otherwise than by expiration of their term shall be filled by the Mayor for the unexpired term. (Municipal Code Title 2; chapter 2; Library Board sec. 2-201).

III. MEETINGS

- A. The board shall meet bi-monthly in the evenings (Municipal Code Title 2; Chapter; Library Board sec. 2-202). Regular meetings of the board will be held on the second Thursday of every other month at 7:00 pm, starting in July. The guiding principles for order at all meetings will be the Roberts Rules of Order.
- B. Special meetings of the board members may be called by the Chairman or upon the written request of two (2) members, for the transaction of such business as shall be stated in the notice of special meeting.
- C. A minimum notice of 48 hours shall be given to all board members. Public notice of all meetings shall be in keeping with applicable State Law.

IV. OFFICERS

- A. The officers of the board shall be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary. They shall be elected at the July meeting each year, take office at the July meeting and serve a two (2) year term after which they or their successors must be elected for another term.
- B. The Chairman shall preside at all board meetings, appoint all committees, authorize calls for any special meetings, and generally perform the duties of a presiding officer. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall preside over the board meetings and otherwise perform the duties of the Chairman. In the absence of the Vice-Chairman, the Chairman shall appoint another board member to preside over the meeting.

C. The Secretary shall keep a true and correct account of all proceedings of the board meetings and shall distribute the transcription thereof along with any appropriate materials to all board members no later than 7 days prior to the next regularly scheduled meeting where appropriate.

V. COMMITTEES

- A. Standing committees shall be formed by the board and appointed by the Chairman; those committees shall be (1) Executive, (2) Budget and Finance, (3) Marketing and Public Relations, (4) Policy Review and Development, and others as deemed necessary.
- B. Special committees shall be formed by the board and appointed by the Chairman. These committees shall be formed for a special purpose, may include Ad Hoc members and shall be dissolved after their work is completed.
- C. Each appointed committee shall report its progress to the board at each regularly scheduled meeting.

VI. QUORUM

A. A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of four (4) members of the board unless otherwise specified by the By-Laws.

VII. ORDER OF BUSINESS

The order of business at the regularly scheduled meetings of the board shall be as follows:

Call to order

Approval of minutes (either read or previously received)

Communications

Report of the Regional Director

Reports

Unfinished business

New business

Adjournment

VIII. AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may only be amended at a regularly scheduled meeting and only by a two-thirds majority vote of the full board (requires five votes).

IX. ATTENDANCE

- A. Board members who miss three (3) meetings in a calendar year may be dismissed from the board and a new member may be appointed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for the unexpired term.
- B. Cause for removal of a board member shall be determined by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen as recommended by the Library Board.

X. REPORTS/BUDGET

The Library Board shall make full and complete monthly reports to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the city and all other reports from time to time as requested (Municipal Code Title 2; Chapter; Library Board sec. 2-206). The board may appoint the Director, an individual board member, or a committee to create and submit all required documents.

XI. LIBRARY DIRECTOR

The board has the power to appoint or designate someone to act as Librarian who shall direct the internal affairs of the library and such assistants or employees as may be necessary (Municipal Code Title 2; Chapter; Library Board sec.2-204). The board may review the library director's job description and duties as needed. The Library Director is responsible to the Library Board for implementing the board-adopted policies and long-range plans for the development of the library programs. The Library Director recommends needed policies for board action, acts as a technical advisor to the board, and suggests and implements plans for extending library services.

XII. EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTOR

Per Municipal Code Title 2; Chapter; Library Board sec. 2-207, the Board of Trustees shall initiate and conduct an annual performance evaluation of the Director. This evaluation will be forwarded to the City to be analyzed and then returned to the Executive Committee of the Library Board for presentation to the Director.

XIII. REGIONAL LIBRARY DIRECTOR

The Regional Library Director may provide professional and technical assistance to the board where appropriate or requested by the board. The Regional Library Director is invited to attend all regularly scheduled meetings.

XIV. ADDRESSING THE BOARD

Individuals who wish to address the Library Board will need to sign in with the Library Director before the meeting begins. Individuals will only be allowed to speak during the communications section of the meeting. Individuals will have a total of 3 minutes to address the board. The board will not respond to the individual during his/her 3-minute address. The Library Director will try to provide details to any patron making an inquiry to see if the issue can be resolved prior to him/her addressing the board.